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The first section of the teleconference is walking through the RFI. We pick up the recording halfway 
through the walk- through: 
 
Question around the effect that digitalization of DFS in the health sector, how that impacts financial and 
increases financial protection (or doesn’t), that is the first question. The second is around whether or 
not using DFS actually leads to increased used of health services particularly among populations that are 
typically excluded. And so, a lot of these questions have a world in which you have digitalization, a world 
in which you don’t, and then looking at the differences in types of outcomes. The third is around the 
performance of the health system. So, when you have DFS, does that change the quality of services 
provided to people? And the final area is around implementation, so for implementers that are using 
DFS with health services, what are they encountering in terms of barriers and challenges, and what has 
been working in implementation, and what are some case studies of success? Those are the four 
question areas. I’m going to go ahead, the remaining parts of the document are very specific about 
deliverables, funding available.  
 
To continue following the RFI outline, the next section is around the planned deliverables which is 
expected to simply be a detailed landscape which is listed in the RFI. We are really interested in covering 
the questions listed above as Skye covered, although this is not a guarantee of funding, we do anticipate 
a package with a budget around 150-200K with a subsequent RFA or RFP if applicable. The next areas 
are desired capabilities that will be considered among respondents. Lastly, the information requested 
outlines the requirements for responses which include importantly, it should not be more than 7 pages 
with the information with page limits, which the information following: the comments and scope of 
services in the section above should be no more that 2 pages, and please include any suggested 
modifications if any in these two pages. The approach the organization would utilize in performing this 
work (up to 1 page); the institutional capabilities and relevant previous work (up to 1 page); and a high-
level summary budget showcasing a rough estimate of up to 200k as listed above, should be outlined by 
cost category which is detailed below. Lastly, the last 2 pages to make 7 are the proposed team with 
relevant skills and experience with a rough level of effort.   
 
Q: I have a question about the scope of services section. Do you basically want this to reflect what you 
understand the RFI to be about plus your ideas about the modifications- that’s pretty much what you 
want because you do have your approach section in here as to how you would go about doing your 
work. Do you want some of that to be reflected in the scope of services or do you see the scope of 
services section being more about what you understand the state of…reflection of what you understand 
about the landscape assessment and modifications? I want to make sure the differences between the 
two sections are clear about the scope versus the approach.  
 
A: I’ll begin by answering that. So, I think you don’t have to spend a lot of time on the scope. It is 
important for applications or RFI submissions to demonstration that you have understood the scope. We 
are very interested in the potential approach and modifications, we might be interested in subjecting. 
Does that answer your question? Because a lot of the scope might also be available on that first 



foundational document that Skye mentioned. A quick synopsis of that would be fine and we’d like to 
understand what the applying institutions would like to do with that opportunity.  
 
Q: Will the responses to the RFI be scored or otherwise used to determine a potential awardee for a 
future RFP and if so, what criteria will they be scored against? 
 
A: Within the RFI there is a series of criteria or capabilities that are desired from folks who submit 
submissions. In terms of scoring, we will not use this to score future RFPs. The language up front is very 
clear. 
 
Q: Is it required to submit a response to this RFI in order to submit a response for future a RFP? 
 
A: No, this RFI is in no way tied to any financial obligations on the part of USAID or Digital Square. 
Responses to the RFI are purely your choice. They are highly appreciated but are in no way tied to any 
future notice or RFA or RFP cycles that may be announced through Digital Square. 
 
Q: For the second section of the RFI response which is the approach for conducting an assessment – 
what does that approach mean exactly? 
 
A: In terms of approach, the key is to give a sense of how you would go about a landscaping were you to 
do the landscaping. There is a lot of information on foundation material and there is a lot of clarity on 
the questions, but the scope might be an opportunity to show that you have a clear understanding of 
what is in there, that you may have suggested modifications, or input into scope. It’s thoughts on the 
methods that would be appropriate for answering these questions.  
 
Q: I have a question regarding the award date and the anticipated length of the project? 
 
A: In terms of the award date, we don’t have an exact date given that we don’t have a guarantee that 
there will be an RFP. If there were one, the third quarter of the calendar year would be about the time 
we’d want to begin. And we’d like there to be a turn around on this in 6 months but there might be 
internal negotiation on that. We would not want it to be past 8-10 months; that would be probably a bit 
too long, so it would be somewhere between 6-8 months.     
 

Q: Do you plan to do further deep-down research or follow on activities of HSS outcomes? 

A: Follow on for sure. The intention here is to learn so as to inform implementation, so that means that 
we are doing this for the intention of influencing at the very least how USAID does its business, but 
potentially also influencing how other development actors conduct or design health programs and seek 
to incorporate digital financial service. 

Q: Should we budget for a dissemination plan? Webinars, workshops, speaking engagements, etc.? 

A: At this stage, you can do that. 

Q: Regarding the deadline for submission of the response to the RFI: the deadline is Friday this week. Is 
that correct? 



A: Yes, the deadline is this Friday, July 26th at 5pm ET. 

Q: Is it globally focused in terms of geographical areas of case studies or specific to Africa or other 
regions? 

A: It is not specific to Africa, but I will point out that a lot of developmental foreign assistance goes into 
Africa. We’re interested in learning from models that are successful, so if models are in Asia, the Pacific, 
Africa, Latin America, we’re interested in the learnings within LMICs. We’re interested in these types of 
technologies working in these types of settings. 

Q: Is there a desire to have applications from low resource settings or can anyone apply globally? 

A: We encourage everyone to weigh in on the RFI. The RFI is a moment to inform and shape and 
influence and the more perspective and diversity we have, the stronger the RFP would be. I think what 
would be very compelling is the methodology and the caliber of personnel that is going to be included in 
the RFI. 

Q: There is desire to demonstrate whether or not the digital finance system was actually able to make a 
difference/cause in terms of impact and it seems that calls for rigorous research and not just data 
gathering? 

A: We are not looking for an RCT or a very expensive or rigorous analysis, but we are looking for 
something stronger than a series of focus groups. I think there is an opportunity to use different 
research methods to perhaps not arrive at something definitive but at least strong enough to say this is 
the direction we want to go in versus another direction and that there is some anecdotal evidence. In 
terms of comparison, if we say we are going to look at an implementation in country x and there is a 
digital health insurance service that is live in that country, perhaps it isn’t national. For comparison, we 
might look at a group of users who have access and also look at users who are engaged in the health 
system but do not have access to that. 

Should the landscape assessment move forward as an RFP, one of the things we want to be sure of is to 
highlight some practical next steps that a variety of actors could do. It’s quite possible that those next 
steps would be related to further research on particular components and that would be a welcome 
output of this larger process. We are looking at this as a potential continuum of efforts rather than 
trying to do this up front, so it’s okay to think of this as the first step in a larger process. 

Q: Is this meant to only be awarded to one organization or could potentially more than one be tasked 
with contributing to this landscape? 

A: I don’t think one organization will have the capacity to answer all of these questions. We are looking 
for a variety of professionals who have health system strengthening expertise as well as digital finance 
expertise and particular interest in digital scaling and health insurance. I haven’t come across a firm that 
has it all, so I think that entails that we are open to collaboration and partnerships for the purpose of 
this RFI and beyond. 

If you want to focus or anchor your response in the area of your institution’s expertise and highlight 
what domains you would be interested in partnering in, I think that is a great way of sharing your 
wisdom and knowledge insights through the RFI process while also conveying how you would want to 
move forward in partnering should an RFP be released. 



Q: Can applicants propose a prospective assessment of a new digital financial solution in one setting to 
study over time or is this restricted to a retrospective analysis of existing solutions across multiple 
settings? 

A: Look at the four questions and overall budget envelope and think about how you would best allocate 
those resources to answer those questions. 

This is a request for information so that Digital Square and USAID can have a better understanding of 
what resources are being thought of and which resources organizations may have, so this is really an 
opportunity for us and for you to showcase skillset right now. We don’t know what an RFA or RFP, if 
there will be one, would look like. 

Q: Given the short turnaround, what is the best way to approach this given the budget is fixed and all 
the aspects that need to be dealt with, there may not be enough time to form partnerships. How does 
one go about that? 

A: It is a short timeline. The wonderful thing about RFIs is that their primary purpose is the exchange of 
information and input. Whatever you are able to pull together in the timeframe will be enormously 
valuable and helpful. Given the timeframe, do not let the perfect be the enemy of the good. There is 
some clear guidance in terms of structure that would need to be followed so make sure you follow 
those, but beyond that there is awareness on our side as well as USAID’s of this timeline and its 
implications for you as you’re preparing responses.  

Q: Would submitting to this RFI and or competing in an RFA/RFP create any potential conflicts of interest 
or would doing so preclude one from competing for other opportunities?  

A: I don’t believe so, no. 

Q: To confirm, it’s how my firm would go about answering these questions as opposed to answering 
these questions now? 

A: We’re not looking for you to answer the questions. We’re looking to understand how one would 
answer the questions and who would answer the questions. And if you recognize that you don’t have 
one of the in-house capabilities, you’re acknowledging that so we also understand that. 

Q: Is there more clarification on how the assessment would be done?  

A: Because this is a Request for Information, the end result is that there is a series of insights generated 
and USAID will have broader awareness as well as input in to the RFP should they decide to design and 
release. It is not a Request for Proposal, and thus the outcome is not a decision of who would be funded. 
There are no criteria or evaluative aspects that are being applied. There is looking at the diversity of 
ideas and concepts submitted and using that to ensure the RFP is as strong as it possibly can be, should 
one be released. 

We’re also interested in understanding who is interested in this space and who has some capacity to 
respond. We are simply trying to understand what the community is thinking and what the capacity is in 
this space. 

Q: You’re still required to make a decision regarding who wins the opportunity to undertake the 
landscape analysis, correct? How will that be determined? What is the criteria? 



A: “Desired capabilities” is very important in determining the implications that are very interesting to us. 
In addition to this, it’s the methodology that you’re going to propose. So it’s a bit of track record and it’s 
also how would you approach this work. 

The RFI is not a funding mechanism. There is no decision about funding following this submission. What 
follows is USAID will be taking this input to inform the potential release of an RFP and should that 
happen, that will have a funding decision but this submission does not. 

Q: There is a budget given so doesn’t a decision have to be made to determine who will get that 
funding? 

There is funding available. USAID has not determined where and what mechanism that funding will 
reach an implementing partner, so we cannot say at this time that there will be funding. We haven’t 
determined any at this point. This RFI provides us the opportunity to understand the capacity and 
expertise that is available through Digital Square. It’s allows us to take the temperature of what the 
community is interested in and capable of delivering. You inform us in regards to capacity and thought 
and we will make further decisions in how we will proceed. You will not be given funding on the basis of 
the RFI. The RFI informs Digital Square and USAID as to the capacities that reside with interested firms 
and the thoughts and the methodology to proceed with the research effort. Once we have that 
information, we will decide how to proceed, whether we will issue an RFP. We have decisions will still 
need to make. We wanted to get an understanding from the community that is interested in this space 
to inform further decisions on our end. You will not be awarded funding based on this RFI. 

Thank you for taking the time to be on the call with us and to look through the RFI and submit your best 
efforts. We believe this will lead to a research exercise at some point which we hope will influence 
USAID implementation in the future. 


